DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
BOARD FOR CORRECTION OF NAVAL RECORDS
701 S. COURTHOUSE ROAD, SUITE 1001
ARLINGTON, VA 22204-2480

!oc!et No. 2513-23

Ref: Signature Date

From: Chairman, Board for Correction of Naval Records
To:  Secretary of the Navy

U

Ref: (a) 10 U.S.C. § 1552

{b) SECNAVINST 1730.8B, Change 1, Accommodation of Religious Practices,
28 March 2012

{c) MCO 1730.9, Accommodation of Religious Practices in the Marine Corps,
12 July 2021

{d) SECNAVINST 1920.6D, Administrative Separation of Officers, 24 July 2019

{e) MCO 5800.16 (Ch. 7), subj: Legal Support and Administration Manual (Short Title:
LSAM), Volume 15 {Officer Misconduct and Substandard Performance of Duty),
8 August 2018

(f) ASN (M&RA) Memo, “Use of Pfizer-BioNTech Vaccinate for Mandatory
Vaccination,” 8 September 2021

(g) ASD (HA) Memo, “Mandatory Vaccination of Service Members using the Pfizer-
BioNTech COVID-19 and Comimaty COVID-19 Vaccines,” 14 September 2021

{h) MCO 1900.16 (Ch. 2), subj: Separation and Retirement Manual (Short Title:
MARCORSEPMAN), 15 February 2019

(i) USD (P&R) Memo, “Guidance to Military Discharge Review Boards and Boards for
Correction of Military / Naval Records Regarding Equity, Injustice, or Clemency
Determinations,” 25 July 2018

Encl: (1) DD Form 149 with attachments

(2) SECDEF Memo, subj: Mandatory Coronavirus Disease 2019 Vaccination of
Department of Defense Service Members, 24 August 2021

(3) ALNAV 062/21, subj: 2021-2022 Department of Navy Mandatory COVID-19
Vaccination Policy, dtg 302126Z AUG 21

{4) MARADMIN 462/21, subj: Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination of Marine Corps
Active and Reserve Components, dtg 011400Z SEP 21

{5) NAVMC 10274, Administrative Action (5216}, 1 September 2021

) Memo subj: Religious Accommodation Memorandum for
[Petitioner}

{(7) MARADMIN 533/21, subj: Supplemental Guidance to Mandatory COVID-19
Vaccination of Marine Corps Active and Reserve Components, dtg 061806Z OCT 21

(8)I Vemollll CO, Second Endorsement on Enclosure (5), subj: Request for
Religious Exemption in the case of [Petitioner],i

© Memo Il CO, Third Endorsement on Enclosure (5), subj: Request
for Religious Exemption in the case of [Petitioner], [ ENGTGTcTczul

(10) MARADMIN 612/21, subj: Supplemental Guidance (2) to Mandatory COVID-19












USMC

Subj: REVIEW OF NAVAL RECORD OF I

for Manpower and irs (DC M&RA), recommending disapproval. In making this
recommendation, t ommander stated that the Marine Corps “has a compelling
government interest in mission accomplishment at the individual, unit, and organization levels,
including such necessary elements of mission accomplishment as military readiness, unit
cohesion, good order and discipline, and health and safety,” and opined that granting Petitioner’s
request would “erode” this interest and adversely impact unit force readiness and mission
accomplishment. See enclosure (8).

i. By memorandum dated 13 October 2021, the ||

, forwarded Petitioner’s religious accommodation package to the DC
M&RA, recommending disapproval without further comment. See enclosure (9).

J» On 23 October 2021, the Marine Corps published MARADMIN 612/21 to further
supplement the guidance of MARADMIN 462/21 referenced in paragraph 3d above. This
message provided guidance that “Marines refusing the COVID-19 vaccination, absent an
approved administrative or medical exemption, religious accommodation, or pending appeal
shall be processed for administrative separation.” It further clarified that, in most cases, Marines
will be ordered to begin the vaccination process before the deadlines established in
MARADMIN 462/21, and that a Marine is considered to have “refused the vaccine” when they
do not have an approved administrative or medical exemption, religious accommodation, or
pending appeal, and they (1) received and willfully disobeyed a lawful order from a superior
commissioned officer to be vaccinated against COVID-19; or (2) they are not or will not be fully
vaccinated by the deadline established in MARADMIN 462/21. Finally, this message
established restrictions upon the assignments available to, ability to reenlist or execute
assignment for, authority to promote, and separation benefits available to Marines who have
refused the vaccine, and authorized the temporary reassignment of such unvaccinated Marines
based upon operational readiness or mission requirements. See enclosure (10).

k. By memorandum dated 26 October 2021, the DC M&RA denied Petitioner’s request for
religious accommodation from the COVID-19 vaccination mandate. See enclosure (11).

1. By memorandum dated 15 November 2021, Petitioner appealed the decision of the DC
M&RA to deny his religious accommodation request to the Commandant of the Marine Corps
(CMC).> See enclosure (12).

m. By memorandum dated 16 November 2021, the ]l commander forwarded
Petitioner’s appeal referenced in paragraph 31 above through the chain of command,
recommending disapproval without further comment. See enclosure (13).

$ Petitioner’s appeal of the denial of his religious accommodation request reiterated his sincerely held religious
beliefs, as discussed in footnote 4 above, and argued for the importance of “spiritual readiness” in the Marine Corps.
In this regard, he also questioned the integrity of the religious accommodation process as it pertained to the COVID-
19 vaccination mandate, as he highlighted the “cookie-cutier” responses that were being received by Marines of
various faiths. Petitioner also argued that accommodation would not jeopardize mission accomplishment, as the
same mitigation measures which were employed to ensure mission accomplishment in the Marine Corps prior to the
availability of the vaccines were still available and effective, and not missed a single day of work due to COVID-19.
Finally, Petitioner questioned the safety and efficacy of the COVID-19 vaccines. Petitioner closed his appeal by
requesting proof that military readiness and the preservation of the health of the force would be jeapardized by
granting his request, and that there was no less-restrictive way to accommodate his request.

5





























